
 

 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 6:00 P.M. MONDAY, JULY 09, 2018 

IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick    leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business 

are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may 

therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Convene to Closed Session 
 
1. Review and evaluate the performance of the City Administrator 

 

C. Reconvene to Open Session (7:00 pm) 

 

D. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

E. Roll Call 

 

F. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations   
 
1. City Cam Project – Nick Shimmin, IT Director and Mike Horihan, Police Chief 

 
G. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your 

name and address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and 

written comments may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk. Special instructions for public 

comments will be provided at the meeting if a public hearing or quasi-judicial matter is scheduled 

on the agenda. 

 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

H. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss 

any item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda 

for discussion.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on with one motion being 

made for all items on the Consent Agenda 
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting June 25, 2018. 
2. Motion to Approve the Brick Arch Winery – Outdoor Service Permit for Hoover Hometown 

Days August 4th, 2018. 
3. Motion to Approve Claims Report. 

 

I. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 
1. Third Reading, Ordinance 752 Amending Chapter 76 (sec. 76.02, 76.10, 76.11, and 

76.14) the Current Bicycle Regulations to Include the Operation of Skate Boards.  
2. Second Reading of New Ordinance: Planned Unit Development 
3. First Reading, Ordinance 756 Amending Chapter 92 – Water Rates Code of 

Ordinances (sec. 92.05 entitled: “Service Discontinued”).  
4. First Reading, Ordinance 757 Amending Chapter 70 – Traffic Code Enforcement 

Procedures (section 70.30 entitled: “Parking Violations: Alternate”).   
5. First Reading, Ordinance 758 Amending Chapter 80 – Abandoned Vehicles (sec. 

80.06 entitled: “Fees for Impoundment”)  
6. First Reading, Ordinance 759 Amending Chapter 122 – Peddlers, Solicitors and 

Transient Merchants. 
7. Resolution 1726 – Adopting Various Administrative Service Fees and adding them to 

the West Branch Schedule of Fees. 
8. Motion to Authorize: the City Administrator to finalize an Easement Access and 

Fence Request Agreement with Care Initiatives (aka Crestview). 
9. Motion to Approve a Request for an Easement on College Street Bridge Project. 
10. Motion to Submit the Amended West Branch Urban Renewal Plan to the Planning 

and Zoning Commission. 
11. Resolution 1727 – A Resolution Approving Partial Pay Estimate #3 in the Amount of 

$247,973.87 to Needham Excavating Inc. for the Cubby Park Improvement Project. 
12. Discussion Item: Consideration regarding additional waterway grading, clearing and 

grubbing for the Cubby Park Improvements Project. 
13. Discussion Item: Discussion on delay of turf seeding and grow-in plan for the Cubby 

Park Improvements. 
 

J. Reports 
 

1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Other Staff Hearsays 

 

K. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

L. Adjournment 

 

 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are 

not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 

 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                               June 25, 2018  
Council Chambers                                                                                               7:00 p.m. 

  
Mayor Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Mayor Laughlin invited the 

Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.   Roll call: 

Council members:  Colton Miller, Jodee Stoolman and Jordan Ellyson were present.  Brian Pierce and Nick 

Goodweiler was absent.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City staff:  City Administrator 

Redmond Jones, City Attorney Kevin Olson, Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick, Finance Officer Gordon Edgar, 

Park & Recreation Director Melissa Russell, Library Director Nick Shimmin, Fire Chief Kevin Stoolman and 

Police Chief Mike Horihan. 

 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

None.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

None.   

 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 
   

1. Motion to approve minutes for City Council Meeting June 4, 2018. 
2. Motion to approve destruction of certain records with Shred-it Services listed on Records Destruction 

Form as per the Record Retention Manual for Iowa Cities.   
3. Motion to approve West Branch Fire Department Class B Beer (BB) (Includes Wine Coolers) with 

Outdoor Service for Hoover’s Hometown Days.  
4. Motion to approve Class E liquor license with privileges: Class B Carryout Wine permit, Class C Carryout 

Beer permit, and Sunday Sales permit for Kum & Go, LC, dba Kum & Go #254. 
5. Motion to approve a consultant contract with Rebecca Knoche for the services of filming City Council 

meetings. 
6. Motion to approve the Library Board appointment of Allen G. Eakes. 
7. Resolution 1723 – Approving the Cedar County Solid Waste Commission 28E Agreement. 
8. Motion to approve “The Down Under” Hoover’s Hometown Days – Outdoor Liquor Permit request. 
9. Motion to approve claims report. 

 
EXPENDITURES     6/25/2018  
     
BAKER & TAYLOR INC.     BOOKS      394.76  
BARRON MOTOR SUPPLY    SUPPLIES      691.35  
BEAVER HEATING AND AIR CON    FREON      235.50  
BUSINESS RADIO SALES    SUPPLIES      38.29  
CAJ ENTERPRISES INC     ROADSTONE     227.35  
CEDAR RAPIDS PHOTO COPY IN    COPIER MAINTENANCE    138.31  
CHIEF SUPPLY CORPORATION    UNIFORMS     92.72  
CJ COOPER & ASSOCIATES    DRUG TESTING     35.00  
DEWEYS JACK & JILL     DEWEYS JACK & JILL     38.54  
DIAMOND VOGEL PAINTS    STREET PAINT     2,133.63  
FEHR GRAHAM     308 PV PARK CONST MGMT    14,915.25  
FELD FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. IN    EQUIPMENT     190.00  
FINANCIAL ADJUSTMENT BUREA    COLLECTION FEE     12.40  
GONGORA, JOSE     SAFETY CONSULTING     3,900.00  
HARRY'S CUSTOM TROPHIES LT    SUPPLIES      75.00  

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

HY-VEE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE    CONCESSION MDSE     61.64  
IOWA ONE CALL     LOCATION SERVICE     36.90  
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL    SUPPLIES      547.58  
JOURNEYED COM INC     SOFTWARE     107.14  
KIRKWOOD COMM. COLLEGE    TRAINING      7.00  
MEDIACOM     CABLE SERVICE     40.90  
MENARDS      SEWER REPAIR SUPPLIES    169.96  
MIDCO DIVING AND MARINE SE    WATER TOWER INSPECTION    2,975.00  
MIDLAND GIS SOLUTIONS, LLC    GPS DATA COLLECTION-SEWER     18,607.00  
 
MISCELLANEOUS VENDOR    MENTE CONSRUCTION:ESCROW REFUND  7,000.00  
MUNICIPAL SUPPLY INC.    WATER METERS & ACCESSORIES    5,229.50  
OASIS ELECTRIC LLC     STREET LIGHT REPAIR     70.00  
OVERDRIVE INC     AUDIOBOOKS     389.98  
PIP PRINTING & MARKETING S    BLDG INSPECTION FORMS    75.33  
PITNEY BOWES INC     POSTAGE METER RENTAL    180.00  
PLAY IT AGAIN SPORTS    SUPPLIES      359.80  
PORT 'O' JONNY INC.     SERVICE-WAPSI PARK     330.00  
QC ANALYTICAL SERVICES LLC    LAB ANALYSIS     805.00  
QUALITY ENGRAVED SIGNS    UNIFORMS     76.00  
QUILL CORP     PROGRAM SUPPLIES     733.64  
STATE HYGIENIC LAB     LAB ANALYSIS     45.50  
SWANK MOTION PICTURES INC    MOVIE LICENSE     94.00  
U.S. POSTAL SERVICE     ANNUAL PO BOX RENT    50.00  
UPS      SEWER-SHIPPING     22.63  
VERIZON WIRELESS     WIRELESS SERVICE     874.00  
WEST BRANCH FORD     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE    128.40  
WEST BRANCH REPAIRS    VEHICLE MAINTENANCE    195.66  
WEST BRANCH TIMES     LEGAL PUBLICATIONS     1,341.13  
WEST LIBERTY GUN CLUB, INC    MEMBERSHIP     880.00  
     
TOTAL            64,551.79  
     
PAYROLL      6/15/2018      57,261.44  
     
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS     
     
ANDERSON, MICHAEL     LIBRARY PROGRAM     325.00  
CEDAR COUNTY RECORDER    RECORDING FEES     26.00  
CROELL, INC.     TOWN HALL DRIVEWAY    970.50  
FLANEGAN, JAMIE LYNN    LIBRARY PROGRAM     100.00  
JULIA HIME     VIDEOGRAPHY SERVICES    300.00  
PDT SERVICES     REPAIR ICE MACHINE     446.20  
STEPHENS, CAROLE     LIBRARY PROGRAM     450.00  
UPS      SEWER-SHIPPING     21.82  
HILLARY GRIER     UTILITY REFUND     33.55  
HILLARY GRIER     DEPOSIT REFUND     100.00  
ETS CORPORATION     CREDIT CARD FEES     126.00  
ALLIANT ENERGY     ELECTRIC SERVICE     9,330.29  
BAKER & TAYLOR INC.     BOOKS      395.31  
BEAN & BEAN     GRAVE OPENINGS     1,650.00  
BP AMOCO     VEHICLE FUEL     682.28  
BROWN'S WEST BRANCH    MAINTENANCE SERVICE    115.19  
GROUT MUSEUM DISTRICT    LIBRARY PROGRAM     291.00  
INTOXIMETERS     SUPPLIES      38.00  
JOHNSON COUNTY REFUSE    RECYCLING, GARBAGE STICKERS    4,463.00  
KUSICK, MIKE     MILEAGE      27.82  
LENOCH & CILEK     MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES    49.80  
LINN COUNTY REC     ELECTRIC SERVICE     155.30  
NEEDHAM EXCAVATING INC.    308 PV PARK CONSTRUCTION    362,865.81  
PITNEY BOWES     POSTAGE METER LEASE - LIBRARY   102.39  
PITNEY BOWES     POSTAGE        1,003.50  
THE GAZETTE     SUBSCRIPTION     324.54  
UNITED LABORATIES        SUPPLIES     433.20                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
UPS      SEWER-SHIPPING     21.37  
US BANK CORPORATE CREDIT CARD   PROGRAM SUPPLIES, TRAVEL EXPENSE   4,642.81  



 

 

US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE    COPIER LEASE     59.00  
USA BLUE BOOK     SUPPLIES      120.96  
WEX BANK      VEHICLE FUEL     1,922.68  
BANKERS TRUST COMPANY    INTEREST & PRINCIPAL    585,251.69  
IOWA FINANCE AUTHORITY    INTEREST & PRINCIPAL    53,797.50  
BEST BUY      PROGRAM SUPPLIES     59.99  
IOWA DEPT OF NATURAL RESOURCES   EXAM FEE      30.00  
WALMART      SUPPLIES      280.57  
     
TOTAL           
 1,031,013.07  
     
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES         
 1,152,826.30  
     
 
 
FUND TOTALS     
001   GENERAL FUND     52,315.14  
022   CIVIC CENTER     625.65  
031   LIBRARY     13,511.12  
110   ROAD USE TAX     7,238.55  
112   TRUST AND AGENCY    13,764.68  
226   GO DEBT SERVICE    585,251.69  
308   PARK IMP - PEDERSEN VALLEY   377,781.06  
600   WATER FUND     19,352.61  
603   WATER SINKING FUND    53,797.50  
610   SEWER FUND     29,188.30  
     
GRAND TOTAL     1,152,826.30 

 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Miller to approve all agenda/consent agenda items except #8 for more discussion.  

AYES:  Ellyson, Miller, Stoolman.  Absent:  Pierce and Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Stoolman questioned why The Down Under (#8) did not have to meet the same double fencing requirement as the 

fire department for serving alcoholic beverages for the event and didn’t agree with the fencing option presented.  

Council concluded that last year the same fencing was used and there were no issues.  The Council also had no 

issue with the request for extended service hours. 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Miller to approve agenda/consent agenda item #8 as submitted.  AYES:  Ellyson, 

Miller.  NAYS:  Stoolman.  Absent:  Pierce and Goodweiler.  Motion carried.   

 

Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 
Discussion: The Meadows Subdivision is beginning their planning process for phase 4 of their development.  It is 

requiring decisions regarding aging sewer infrastructure. 

Brad Larson, partner of KLM Development presented a preliminary concept for The Meadows – Phase 4 which 

includes the construction of a new street (Dawson Drive) that intersects with W. Main Street and goes 

north/northeast to the future Gilbert Drive extension which also provides access to Cedar-Johnson Road.  The 

preliminary concept shows approximately 49 new residential lots.  Larson said the existing sewer line running 

through the property is inadequate for handling the new phase and asked the Council to consider using TIF to 

reimburse KLM for replacing the sewer line.  Larson said he had received a quote for approximately $350,000 

from Lynch Excavating for replacing the line.  The council agreed that the sewer line has issues and was 

agreeable to considering an agreement with KLM.  Council directed the City Administrator to pursue an 

agreement and bring back to the next meeting for consideration. 

 

Third Reading Ordinance 754 – Approve the rezoning of the following described parcel located at 116 N. 1st 

Street, West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa; rezoning parcel #0500-13-05-357-015-0 from CB-1 Central Business 

District to RB-1 Residential Business District. /Move to action. 



 

 

 
Prepared by:  Kevin D. Olson, West Branch City Attorney, PO Box 5640, Coralville, Iowa 52241 (319)351-2277 

Return to:  Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk, P.O. Box 218, West Branch, Iowa 52358 (319)643-5888 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 754 

 

AN ORDINANCE RE-ZONING THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 116 N. 1ST STREET FROM CB-1 

CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT TO RB-1 RESIDENCE BUSINESS DISTRICT. 

 
WHEREAS, David and Kami Poppen (“Poppen”) have petitioned the City of West Branch for a zoning district amendment for 116 N. 1st Street, said parcel 

being legally described as:   

 
East ½ of Lot 3, Block 34 West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa (the  “Parcel”); 

  

WHEREAS, Poppen has requested that the Parcel be rezoned to be located in an RB-1 Residence Business District, in place of an CB-1 Central Business 
District; and 

 

WHEREAS, the West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended the City Council approve said rezoning request; and 
 

WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held on said request pursuant to published notice thereof. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa : 

 

Section 1.  That the zoning map for the City of West Branch is hereby amended to show the Parcel being located in a RB-1 Residence Business District in 
place of an CB-1 Central Business District.  

  

Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its publication as by law provided. 
 

Section 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 
Section 4.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity 

of this ordinance as a whole or any part, section, or provision thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 
Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, approval and publication as required by law. 

 

First Reading: June 4, 2018 
Second Reading: June 4, 2018 (Rules suspended) 

Third Reading: June 25, 2018 

 

____________________________________ 

Roger Laughlin, Mayor 
 

ATTEST:___________________________________ 

   Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

Motion by Miller, second by Ellyson to approve third reading of Ordinance 754.  AYES:  Miller, Ellyson, 

Stoolman.  Absent:  Pierce and Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Resolution 1724 – Approving an Agreement not to exceed $50,000 for the services of site preparation to 

Barnhart’s Custom Services, LLC. /Move to action. 

Laughlin said the agreement includes breaking up the remaining concrete, stock piling it on-site and grading of 

the area cleared. 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Stoolman to approve Resolution 1724.  AYES:  Ellyson, Stoolman, Miller.  

Absent:  Pierce and Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Third Reading Ordinance 751, Amending Chapter 69.08 entitled “No Parking Zone” (add 67) to prohibit Semi 

Truck and other parking on Tidewater Drive. /Move to action. 

Motion by Miller, second by Ellyson to approve third reading of Ordinance 751.  AYES:  Miller, Ellyson, 

Stoolman.  Absent:  Pierce and Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 
 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE 751 

 

ORDINANCE REGULATING NO PARKING ZONES. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, Iowa has jurisdiction to establish Parking Regulations within the corporate limits of the City of West Branch; and 
 
WHEREAS, No Parking Zones shall mean, no stop, stand, or parking of a vehicle in any of the following designated no parking zones except when 

necessary to avoid conflict with other traffic or in compliance with the direction of a peace officer or traffic control signal; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has heretofore deemed it necessary and desirable to pass legislation regulating the no parking zones within the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 
1. Amendment.  Section 69.08 of the Code of Ordinances is hereby adding subsection sixty-Seven (67) with the following: 
 
67.  Both sides of Tidewater Dr. East of Baker Ave.  Parking would be allowed during special events, when authorized by the City Council or the Chief of 

Police. (Example- Kites over West Branch)   
 
2.  Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby 

repealed. 
 
3.  Adjudication.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not 
affect the validity of the ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
4.   Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, approval and publication as required by law. 

 

First reading: May 21, 2018 
Second reading: June 4, 2018 

Third Reading: June 25, 2018 

__________________________________ 
           Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST:__________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

Third Reading Ordinance 752 Amending Chapter 76 (sec. 76.02, 76.10, 76.11, and 76.14) the Current Bicycle 

Regulations to Include the Operation of Skate Boards. /Move to action. 

Stoolman said a resident approached her for clarification on requirements for skateboarders if they were to wear 

lights as is required for bicyclists at night.  Chief Horihan explained the difference between pedestrian and 

bicyclist laws and said that skateboards fall under the pedestrian laws.  He reiterated that the change had public 

safety in mind and to create a safer environment.   Horihan provided examples of dangerous behavior recently 

observed which prompted this Code change.  The council decided to table this item and bring back to the next 

meeting to give the change some additional thought. 

Motion by Miller, second by Ellyson to postpone the third reading of Ordinance 752.  AYES:  Miller, Ellyson, 

Stoolman.  Absent:  Pierce and Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Resolution 1722 – A Resolution Setting Salaries for Appointed Officers and Employees of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa for Fiscal Year 2019. /Move to action. 

Motion by Miller, second by Ellyson to approve Resolution 1722.  AYES:  Miller, Ellyson, Stoolman.  Absent:  

Pierce and Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Motion to Approve an Updated West Branch Schedule of Fees. /Move to action. 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Stoolman.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Ellyson, Stoolman, Miller.  Absent:  Pierce and 

Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Discussion: Care Initiatives (Crestview) Easement Access and Fence Request. 

Jones provided some background on a recent discovery with the Cubby Park project regarding the need for an 

easement from Care Initiatives (Crestview) to get power to the park.  Jones then gave an update from a recent 

meeting with Alliant Energy who is working on an alternate solution which will not require the easement.  Jones 

said staff is also working on a solution for the fence request. 

 

Resolution 1725 – Authorizing the City Administrator to enter into a Settlement Agreement and Release with 

French Reneker Associates Inc. Engineers & Surveyors of Fairfield, Iowa. 

Jones reported that he and Councilperson Miller met with a representative from French-Reneker Associates 

recently and came to an agreement with receiving a refund of engineering fees paid for the West Branch Village 



 

 

project which failed to meet DNR standards.  The agreement was mutually agreed upon between both parties and 

Jones suggested that the Council allow City Engineer Dave Schechinger review the site to see if the project can be 

redesigned and completed sometime in the future.  Jones also said the REAP grant funds the City received would 

need to be returned and that the City would have to re-apply for the grant. 

Motion by Miller, second by Ellyson to approve Resolution 1725.  AYES:  Miller, Ellyson, Stoolman.  Absent:  

Pierce and Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

First Reading of New Ordinance: Planned Unit Development 

Laughlin said the ordinance was written and approved by the Planning & Zoning Commission for the former 

Croell Redi Mix site.  Although very detailed in nature, Laughlin said it does what it was intended to do and that 

was give the City control over what gets developed on the site.  Laughlin recommended that the Council approve 

the language for the new ordinance.  Note:  the ordinance will be numbered 755 and will appear as such on the 

next Council agenda. 

Motion by Miller, second by Stoolman to approve first reading of Ordinance 755.  AYES:  Miller, Stoolman, 

Ellyson.  Absent:  Pierce and Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 
 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones reported on a recent meeting with Veenstra & Kimm and the waste water task group and said the engineers 

informed them that the City’s current lagoon system is operating at or above capacity.  The means that another 

lagoon will be needed with any alternative waste water process chosen.  Estimated costs for adding a third lagoon 

is $1 million.  The alternative would be to build a waste water plant but preliminary estimates show the operating 

costs will be higher than a lagoon process.  The task group will meet again to discuss next steps and will be 

waiting for the DNR required facility study (scope of work and process) identified and available for Council 

review in July.  Jones also said the US Autoforce has moved into their new location on Council Drive and is 

hiring.  Jones also reported that a fireworks tent opened on Friday, June 22nd in an open lot on Tidewater Drive.   

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

No report.   

 

STAFF REPORTS  

Park & Recreation Director, Melissa Russell reported that the City received a Minnesota Twins grant in the 

amount of $5,000 for Cubby Park to be used for the ball fields. 

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER 

 

Mayor Laughlin mentioned the Acciona agreement should be reviewed and addressed before the next annual 

appropriation is due on December 1st.  He also mentioned that the City of Clarence recently installed a small 

splash pad using community donations and discussed how they are operating it.   

 

Stoolman questioned if the grates from the storm sewers along 6th Street were going to be re-installed as she felt 

they imposed a safety hazard.  Public Works Director Matt Goodale was not available for comment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn by Miller, second by Ellyson.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council meeting adjourned 

at 8:39 p.m.  

 

                           _________________________________________  

                                            Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Brick Arch Winery – Outdoor Service 

Permit for Hoover Hometown Days August 4th, 2018 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick 

DATE:  July 6, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Brick Arch Winery has submitted a sketch for outdoor service for Hoover’s Hometown 

Days.  The license will be for Saturday, August 4th from 11:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

  

 Consent Item 2 



 

 

   
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  July 6, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day 

operational disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

   
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Third Reading, Ordinance 752, Amending Chapter 76 entitled 

“Bicycle Regulations” (amending subsections 02, 10, 11 and 14) to 

include the “Operation of Skate Boards”. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Police Chief 

DATE:  June 21, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
We are trying to get a handle on kids ridding skateboards and riding bicycles at 

night.   Thinking of a $65.00 dollar fine, and would be handled as an unscheduled simple 

misdemeanor.       

 

In response to the discussion and questions from the June 25th City Council Meeting the 

State of Iowa definition for bicycle and pedestrian is provided.  There was also reference 

to West Liberty’s Ordinance… that is also included in the attachments. Please see 

attachment 1 and attachment 2 within this item. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Third and Final Reading – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 

Added Language 



 

 

 
 
 

 

 

  

 

Added Language 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 
 

Added Language 



 

 

Attachment 1: 

 

 

321.1 (40)  Bicycle Definition  (Iowa) 

 

 

c.  “Bicycle” means either of the following:(1)  A device 

having two wheels and having at least one saddle or seat 

for the use of a rider which is propelled by human 

power.(2)  A device having two or three wheels with 

fully operable pedals and an electric motor of less than 

seven hundred fifty watts (one horsepower), whose 

maximum speed on a paved level surface, when powered 

solely by such a motor while ridden, is less than twenty 

miles per hour. 

 

321.1 (40) Pedestrian  (Iowa) 

51.  “Pedestrian” means any person afoot.  

 

321.326 Pedestrians on left. (Iowa) 
Pedestrians shall at all times when walking on or along 
a highway, walk on the left side of 
such highway. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Attachment 1 cont. 

 

 

WEST BRANCH CITY ORDIANCE 

 

CHAPTER 67  

PEDESTRIANS  

67.01  Walking in Street 67.03  Pedestrian Crossing 

67.02  Hitchhiking 67.04  Use Sidewalks 

67.01    WALKING IN STREET.  Pedestrians shall at all times when walking on 

or along a street, walk on the left side of the street.  

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 321.326) 

67.02    HITCHHIKING.  No person shall stand in the traveled portion of a street 

for the purpose of soliciting a ride from the driver of any private vehicle.  

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 321.331) 

67.03    PEDESTRIAN CROSSING.  Every pedestrian crossing a roadway at any 

point other than within a marked crosswalk or within an unmarked crosswalk at an 

intersection shall yield the right-of-way to all vehicles upon the roadway.  

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 321.328) 

67.04    USE SIDEWALKS.  Where sidewalks are provided it is unlawful for any 

pedestrian to walk along and upon an adjacent street. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Attachment 2 

 

 
 

WEST LIBERTY ORDIANCE 
 
8-2-11: ROLLER SKATES; SIMILAR DEVICES: 

 

A. Riding On Roadways Restricted: No person upon roller skates or riding in or by means of 
any coaster, toy vehicle or similar device shall go upon any roadway except while 
crossing a street on a crosswalk, and when so crossing such person shall be granted all 
of the rights and shall be subject to all of the duties applicable to pedestrians. This Section 
shall not apply upon any street while set aside as a play street as authorized by ordinance 
of the City. (1975 Code § 8-2-10) 

 

B. Skateboards; Rollerblades; Roller Skates: It shall be unlawful for any person to ride on a 
skateboard, which is a board held off the ground by a series of wheels, rollerblades or 
roller skates, on any sidewalk in the "central business district", as defined in Section 8-1-1 
of this Title; and also the area bounded to the north by the alley between Fourth and Fifth 
Streets and Clay Street and Spencer Street. It shall be unlawful for any person to ride a 
"skateboard", as defined, rollerblades or roller skates, on any street or alley within the City 
limits. In all cases, and upon all sidewalks and crosswalks within the City limits, the 
pedestrians shall have the right of way. A violator of this Section shall be subject to a fine 
of five dollars ($5.00). (Ord. 4-91, 8-20-1991; and. Ord. 8-95, 6-20-1995; 1998 Code) 

 

 

8-2-12: FINES NOT PAID: 

 
All five dollar ($5.00) fines not paid within thirty (30) days of the date upon which the violation 
occurred shall increase to ten dollars ($10.00). (Ord. 8-95, 6-20-1995) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=3&find=8-1-1


 

 

ORDINANCE 752 

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING BICYCLE REGULATIONS. 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, Iowa has jurisdiction to establish Bicycle 

Regulations within the corporate limits of the City of West Branch; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Bicycle Regulations shall apply whenever a bicycle is operated upon 

any street or upon any public path set aside for the exclusive use of bicycles, subject to 

those exceptions stated herein; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the intent of this amendment is not change the regulations regarding 

bicycling rather it is to include regulations related to the various forms of Skateboarding. 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has heretofore deemed it necessary and desirable to 

pass legislation regulating the bicycle and skateboard within the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. Amendment.  Section 76.02, 76.10, 76.11, and 76.14 of the Code of Ordinances is 

hereby amending section seventy (70) with the following: 
 

76.02 TRAFFIC CODE APPLIES.  Every person riding a bicycle or using a 

skateboard or in-line skates upon a roadway shall be granted all of the rights and 

shall be subject to all of the duties applicable to the driver of a vehicle by  the  laws 

of  the State declaring  rules of  the  road applicable  to vehicles or by  the traffic 

code of the City applicable to the driver of a vehicle, except as to those provisions 

which by their nature  can  have  no  application.   Whenever such person 

dismounts or stops from a bicycle or using the skateboard or in-line skates, the 

person shall be subject to all regulations applicable to pedestrians. Skateboards and 

in-line skates shall not be allowed on city Streets, 20 minutes before dusk till 30 

minutes after dawn. 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 321.234)  
 
76.10 TOWING. It is unlawful for any person riding a bicycle, skateboard or in-

line skates to be towed or to tow any other vehicle upon the streets of the City.  
 
76.11 IMPROPER RIDING. No person shall ride a bicycle, skateboard or inline 

skates in an irregular or reckless manner such as zigzagging, stunting, speeding or 

otherwise so as to disregard the safety of the operator or others. 
  
76.14 SPECIAL PENALTY. Any person violating the provisions of this chapter 

may, in lieu of the scheduled fine for bicyclists, skateboarders, or in-line skates or 

standard penalty provided for violations of the Code of Ordinances, allow the 

person’s bicycle to be impounded by the City for not less than five (5) days for the 

first offense, ten (10) days for a second offense and thirty (30) days for a third 

offense.  

 

2.  Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and 

in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 



 

 

3.  Adjudication.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged 

to be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 

ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional. 
 
4.   Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 

approval and publication as required by law. 

 

First reading:  May 21, 2018 
 
Second reading: June 4, 2018 
 
Third Reading: June 25, 2018 (tabled) 
 
Third Reading: July 9, 2018 

 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Second Reading of Ordinance 755, Amending Chapter 165 with 

new section 165.50; entitled: “Planned Unit Development” 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  June 21, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND: 

The origins of PUDs in American communities can be traced to British movements during the 

1950s. The developments in Britain's new communities dealt with the locations of industrial 

elements and how they were publicly dictated before building ever began in order to uphold 

an economic base. 

PUD as a regulatory process is a means of land regulation which promotes large scale, unified land 

development by means of mid-range, realistic programs in chase of physically curable, social and 

economic deficiencies in land and cityscapes. Where appropriate, this development control promotes: 

 A mixture of both land uses and dwelling types with at least one of the land uses being regional in 

nature 

 The clustering of residential land uses providing public and common open space 

 Increased administrative discretion to a local professional planning staff while setting aside present 

land use regulations and rigid plat approval processes 

 The enhancement of the bargaining process between the developer and government municipalities 

which in turn strengthens the municipality's site plan review and control over development for 

potentially increased profits due to land efficiency, multiple land uses, and increased residential 

densities. 

Frequently, PUDs take on a variety of forms ranging from small clusters of houses combined with open 

spaces to new and developing towns with thousands of residents and various land uses. However, the 

definition of a PUD does not take into consideration these types of developments unless they fit into a 

category of size ranging from 100 to 200 acres (40 to 81 ha). In a PUD the property owner owns the 

land the dwelling sits on 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Second Reading – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 2 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Industry
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Economic_base


 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading Ordinance 756, Amending Chapter 92 – Water 

Rates.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick 

DATE:  July 5, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

During a review of current fees listed in the West Branch Code of Ordinances, Public Works 

Director Matt Goodale requested a fee increase for the water service disconnection (Chapter 

92.05(4) Service Disconnection.  The fee is requested to be increased to cover the cost of 

staff time and to deter habitual offenders. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve 1st Reading of Ordinance 756 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

ORDINANCE 756 

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 92 – WATER RATES 

 

 

CHAPTER 92 WATER RATES CODE OF ORDINANCES, WEST BRANCH, IOWA  

 

92.05 SERVICE DISCONTINUED. Water service to delinquent customers shall be 

discontinued in accordance with the following: (Code of Iowa, Sec. 384.84)  

1. Notice. The billing clerk shall notify each delinquent customer that service will be 

discontinued if payment of the combined service account, including late payment charges, 

is not received by the date specified in the notice of delinquency. Such notice shall be sent 

by ordinary mail and shall inform the customer of the nature of the delinquency and afford 

the customer the opportunity for a hearing prior to the discontinuance. 2. Notice to 

Landlords. If the customer is a tenant, and if the owner or landlord of the property has 

made a written request for notice, the notice of delinquency shall also be given to the 

owner or landlord.  

3. Hearing. If a hearing is requested by noon of the day preceding the shut off, the City 

Administrator shall conduct an informal hearing and shall make a determination as to 

whether the disconnection is justified. The customer has the right to appeal the City 

Administrator’s decision to the Council, and if the Council finds that disconnection is 

justified, then such disconnection shall be made, unless payment has been received.  

4. Fees. A fee of twenty dollars ($20.00) ($50.00) shall be charged before service is 

restored to a delinquent customer during working hours and a fee of fifty dollars ($50.00) 

($75.00) shall be charged before service is restored during non-working hours. No fee 

shall be charged for the usual or customary trips in the regular changes in occupancies of 

property. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading Ordinance 757, Amending Chapter 70 – Traffic 

Code Enforcement Procedures (sec. 70.03 entitled: “Parking 

Violations: Alternate”). 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick 

DATE:  July 5, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

November 15, 2017  

 Click here to enter text. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve 1st Reading of Ordinance 757 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Non Consent Item 4 

BACKGROUND:  

 

During a review of current fees listed in the West Branch Code of Ordinances, Police Chief 

Mike Horihan requested a fee increase for parking violations (Chapter 70.03 Parking 

Violations.  The change is requested to charge a late fee on parking violations to improve 

timely collections and to increase the disability parking fee to current state limit of $200.00. 

 



 

 

 

ORDINANCE 757 

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 70 – TRAFFIC CODE ENFORCEMENT 

PROCEDURES 

 

70.03 PARKING VIOLATIONS: ALTERNATE. Admitted violations of parking 

restrictions imposed by this Code of Ordinances may be charged upon a simple notice of a 

fine of payable at the office of the City Clerk. The simple notice of a fine shall be in the 

amount of fifteen dollars ($15.00) ($30 after 10 days) for all violations except improper 

use of a persons with disabilities parking. The simple notice of a fine for improper use of a 

persons with disabilities parking permit is one hundred dollars ($100.00) ($200.00). 

Failure to pay the simple notice of a fine shall be grounds for the filing of a complaint in 

District Court.  

 

(Ord. 607 – Mar. 06 Supp.) (Code of Iowa, Sec. 321.236 [1a] & 321L.4[2]) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading Ordinance 758, Amending Chapter 80 – Abandoned 

Vehicles. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  July 5, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

During a review of current fees listed in the West Branch Code of Ordinances, Police Chief 

Mike Horihan requested a fee increase for impounding vehicles (Chapter 80.06 - 

Fees for Impoundment).  The change is requested to increase storage fees from $3.00 per 

day to $35.00 per day.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve First Reading – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

ORDINANCE 758 

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 80 – ABANDONED VEHICLES  

 

 

80.06 FEES FOR IMPOUNDMENT. The owner, lienholder or claimant shall pay three 

dollars ($3.00) ($35.00) if claimed within five (5) days of impounding, plus one dollar 

($1.00) for each additional day within the reclaiming period plus towing charges if stored 

by the City, or towing and storage fees, if stored in a public garage, whereupon said 

vehicle shall be released. The amount of towing charges, and the rate of storage charges 

by privately owned garages, shall be established by such facility.  

 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 321.89[3a]) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

   

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading, Ordinance 759 Amending Chapter 122 – Peddlers, 

Solicitors and Transient Merchants. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick 

DATE:  July 5, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
During a review of current fees listed in the West Branch Code of Ordinances, Chapter 122 

- Peddlers, Solicitors and Transient Merchants (Chapter 122.05 – License Fees), Council 

requested staff to research fees that surrounding cities charge for permits.  The information 

for 4 surrounding cities is attached for Council review and direction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve First Reading – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

ORDINANCE 759 

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 122 – PEDDLERS, SOLICITORS AND 

TRANSIENT MERCHANTS  

 
 

122.05 LICENSE FEES. The following license fees shall be paid to the Clerk prior to the 

issuance of any license.  

1. For one day................................................. $ 10.00  

2. For one week.............................................. $ 25.00  

3. For up to six (6) months............................. $ 100.00  

4. For one year or major part thereof ............. $ 175.00 

 

 

 

City #1 – Tiffin, IA 

 

1. For one day................................................. $ 30.00  

2. For one week.............................................. $ 50.00  

3. For up to six (6) months............................. $ 100.00  

4. For one year or major part thereof ............. $ 250.00 

 

 

 

City #2 – Center Point, IA 

 

1. For one day................................................. $ 10.00  

2. For one week.............................................. $ 25.00  

3. For up to six (6) months............................. $ 50.00  

4. For one year or major part thereof ............. $ 150.00 

 

 

City #3 – North Liberty, IA 

 

 Application Fee $10 (non-refundable) 

 For Solicitors - $20 per year 

For Peddlers & Transient Merchants 

1. For one day................................................. $10.00 

2. For one week.............................................. $ 15.00 

3. For up to six (6) months............................. $ 40.00  

4. For one year or major part thereof ............. $ 75.00 

 

 

City #4 – Walcott, IA 

 

1. Good for one day only......... ....................... $ 5 (48 hour waiting period) 



 

 

    
 

              REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1726 – Adopting Various Administrative Fees and 

adding them to the West Branch Schedule of Fees. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick 

DATE:  July 5, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

 

During a review of current fees listed in the West Branch Code of Ordinances, staff 

reviewed various services provided and requested to the ability to consistently 

charge for such services.  Fees are listed on “Exhibit A”. 

 

 

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1726 

 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING VARIOUS ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICE FEES AND 

ADDING THEM TO THE WEST BRANCH SCHEDULE OF FEES 

 

 WHEREAS, the City charges fees for various licenses, permits and applications to 

cover its administrative costs; and  

 

 WHEREAS, in the past the City has generally adopted fees for licenses, permits 

and applications by ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Administrative Staff’s efforts consolidates the information 

on fees charged by the City in one location, to make it easier to track and charge the fees 

that reflect the cost of delivering service; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Administrative Staff has made recommendations for new 

administrative fees listed on Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, Council has determined that the fees included in this Resolution are 

appropriate and are reasonably related to the purpose for which such fees are charged. 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch as 

follows: 

 

Section 1. That the fees set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part 

hereof, be in full force and effect immediately upon its adoption and approval, as 

provided by law. 

Section 2. All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

Passed and approved this 9th day of July, 2018. 

      

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

     Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

Attest: 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE FEES 
 

Photocopies      $0.10 per page - black/white 

       $.50 per page – color 

Fax Services      $1.00 1st page, $0.50 per page after 

Recording Fees (any type)    actual costs 

Notary Service     No Charge 

Lost Key Fee       $15 

 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES 
 

Barricades       $50 up to 4 (refundable deposit) 

Road cones      $50 up to 10 (refundable deposit) 

 

 

WEST BRANCH POLICE DEPARTMENT FEES 
 

Fingerprinting      $15 

Certified Officer     $45 per hour 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Authorize: the City Administrator to finalize an Easement 

Access and Fence Request Agreement with Care Initiatives (aka 

Crestview). 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  July 5, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
In order to gain utility access for Cubby Park, Staff has been working through several challenges 

to gain this access at cost effect matter without losing park character or charm. Alliant Energy has 

re-examined their original quote and cut it by half to get it to $23,000 for the installation of 

Primary service. 
 
As you may recall from our June 25th City Council Meeting that Dave Dixon, Vice President / Chief 

Financial Officer with Care Initiatives offered granting an easement in exchange for a 6 foot tall 

solid PVC fence approximately 275 feet in length at an anticipated project expense of potentially 

$12,000.  This would be added to the $5,000 of expenses Alliant would need to get utility service to 

the park; the Crestview Option would be anticipated at $17,000. 
 
Working with Crestview representatives, staff was able to negotiate a potential win / win scenario.  

There were several concerns regarding having 6 foot tall PVC fence running 275 along a 

prominent cubby park property boundary.  Should the city council agree, we have reached a 

tentative agreement that would call for a green chain link fence which would be at a modest height 

of 4 feet.  We expect this type of fencing less expense, less problematic to maintain, and will blend 

in with the hedges once they grown in.  The price for 275 ft of commercial grade green vinyl-

coated, chain link fence is $8,900 for 4ft tall and $9,500 for 5ft tall.  This would be added to the 

$5000 of expenses Alliant would need to get utility service to the park; making the win / win 

option an anticipated cost of $13.900 – $14,500. 

 

This would be a contingency expense due to not being in the original budget. 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 8 



 

 

 
 

 
 

  
 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve a Request for an Easement relating to the 

College Street Bridge Project.  

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Dave Schechinger, City Engineer 

DATE:  July 6, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
I met with Kenny and Larry Fobian last week to discuss the College Street Bridge 

project.  They indicated they were in favor of the project, but wanted to discuss the ability 

to use a portion of the City property that was formerly part of the railroad ROW that lies 

adjacent to the west side of their property.  They indicated that they will be losing some of 

their parking and access area due to realignment of College Street and would like to gain 

permission to use the east part of the old railroad property to park their vehicles and to 

serve as an additional driveway when they have vehicles delivering grain to the bins on 

their property. 

 

I have attached (see attachment 3) a drawing that shows the general location of the area 

they would like to use as well as the easements we are pursuing on their property.  I told 

Fobians I would relay this request to the City for consideration.   

 

They also asked about future use of their property if the grain bins were destroyed.  I told 

them I would look into it.  In doing so, I noticed that I-2 Zoning does not include any are 

requirements that are listed for other zoning districts.  (no front yard/side yard/rear yard 

setbacks listed). 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 9 



 

 

 

Attachment 3 



 

 

 
 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Submit the Amended West Branch Urban Renewal 

Plan to the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  July 6, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

This is the First Step.  Designating amendment to the Urban Renewal Plan is not a 

authorization for any project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek City Council Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 10 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1727 – A Resolution Approving Partial Pay Estimate #3 

in the Amount of $247,973.87 to Needham Excavating Inc. for the 

Cubby Park Improvement Project. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  July 6, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
This is the third pay estimate for work at Cubby Park completed by Needham Excavating. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 11 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1727 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PARTIAL PAY ESTIMATE NUMBER 3 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $247,973.87 TO NEEDHAM EXCAVATING INC. FOR THE 

CUBBY PARK IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT. 

 

WHEREAS, Needham Excavating Inc. of Walcott, Iowa was awarded the 

construction contract for Cubby Park Improvements for West Branch, Iowa (the “Project”) 

by the West Branch City Council through the passage of Resolution 1680 on January 16, 

2018 in the amount of $2,945,427.39; and 

 

WHEREAS, Needham Excavating has declared that said project has started and 

work has been rendered in accordance with drawings and specifications on the Project, 

based on observations West Branch project managers and the project managers of Fehr 

Graham who are contracted with the City of West Branch to oversee the construction 

process. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of West Branch, approved Partial Pay Estimate 

Number One (1) in the amount of $276,843.04 to Needham Excavating Inc. of Walcott, 

IA is approved on May 7th; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of West Branch also approved the Pay Estimate 

Number Two (2) in the amount of $362,865.81 and at which time the project was 

approximately 24% complete.  

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to accept the Pay Estimate 

Number Three (3) in the amount of $247,973.87 and the project is now approximately 

32.80% complete.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of West Branch, 

that Partial Pay Estimate Number Three in the amount of $247,973.87 to Needham 

Excavating Inc. of Walcott, IA is approved. 

 

Passed and approved this 9th day of July, 2018. 

 

 

 

      ______________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Consideration regarding additional waterway 

grading and clearing & grubbing for the Cubby Park Improvements 

Project.   

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Nate Kass, Fehr Graham 

DATE:  July 6, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND: 

We have been asked to provide a cost estimate for the clearing & grubbing of the scrub 

brush along the easterly bank of the waterway near the pond at Cubby Park, as well as a cost 

estimate to grade the banks similar to the west side (back yards of the residents along Gilbert 

Dr) or Lions Field. Due to the pipeline, wetlands, and the pond outlet as constructed, there 

is limited area that can be graded economically. There is approximately 160 feet between 

the pond outlet and the pipeline that can feasibly be graded which has a few larger, desirable 

trees that would be removed (estimated cost of tree removal, grading, and seeding: $10,000). 

There is approximately 250 feet of waterway (200 feet straight line) north of the pond outlet 

that can feasibly be graded that has several larger, desirable trees that would be removed 

(estimated cost $30,000). The cost for each does not include any detailed engineering 

design. We suggest having city staff mark the trees to be removed and simply direct the 

contractor to complete the grading to the feasible slope within the constraints. If detailed 

design is required, we can provide a fee estimate upon request. 

 

Note that no wetlands were identified in these specific areas and the grading will be above 

the normal water line, so a US Army Corps of Engineers Nationwide permit is not required. 

Because no fill material will be placed in the flood plain, no additional permitting is required 

by the Iowa DNR Floodplain Section. It is recommended that the floodplain development 

permit issued by the city be amended to include this work if it is authorized. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek City Council Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 12 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  July 9, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Discussion on delay of turf seeding and grow-in 

plan for the Cubby Park Improvements 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Nate Kass, Fehr Graham 

DATE:  July 6, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND: 

Due to weather delays, Needham Excavating was unable to complete the grading in time to 

seed the ball fields at Cubby Park prior to the specified milestone date to commence the 

grow-in plan by June 15. The typical climate in Iowa after mid-June and through July is not 

conducive for good seed germination and grass growth. After consulting with multiple 

experts and discussions with Needham Excavating, their seeding contractor, the seed 

supplier, and city staff, it was determined that successful seeding was unlikely before 

August 1. There is a higher level of confidence that commencing the grow-in plan by August 

15 will still result in a playable turf next spring than attempting to seed the fields 

immediately. Therefore, the contractor is requesting the specified June 15 milestone date be 

adjusted to August 15 when the weather is more conducive to establishing the turf seeding. 

 

In addition to the weather delays, the groundwater seeping from the hillside is preventing 

the contractor from being able to finish grading the area around the right field corner of the 

adult softball field. The additional tile previously approved and installed is running full but 

not keeping up. The contractor estimates that an additional 300 ft of tile should be installed 

and connected to the storm sewer system. Only 1,200 ft of the 1,340 ft of tile previously 

approved was installed, so the overrun on previously approved quantity is approximately 

160 ft at $15/ft, or approximately $2,400 overrun. We recommend installation of the 

additional tile. No additional change order would be required at this time as there is a unit 

cost item in the contract by previous change order. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek City Council Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 13 


